LOCF-02-16

' RESOLUTION

OF THE LAW AND ORDER COMMITTEE
OF THE 23" NAVAJO NATION COUNCIL

23 NAVAJO NATION COUNCIL — SECOND YEAR, 2016
AN ACTION

RELATING TO LAW AND ORDER; RECOMMENDING TO THE NAVAJO NATION PRESIDENT
THE APPOINTMENT OF CHRIS P. BENALLY AS NAVAJO NATION DISTRICT COURT
JUDGE

" BE IT ENACTED:
Section One. Findings.

A. The Navajo Nation established the Law and Order Committee as a
Navajo Nation standing committee and as such gave LOC authority
to recommend to the Navajo Nation President the permanent
appointment of probationary judges. 2 N.N.C. §§ 164 (A) (9), 600
(A), 601(BC) (10) (2012). -

B. The Law and Order Committee’s purpose is “to protect the rights

and interest of the Navajo People by improving the quality and

. effectiveness of the justice system within the Navajo Nation.” 2 -
N.N.C. § 600(C) (2) (2012).

C. To improve the quality and effectiveness of the justice system,
the Navajo Nation Judicial Branch needs to be fully staffed;
however, the Navajo Nation Judicial Branch has seven vacancies
for Navajo Nation District Court Judge position.

D. Diné Traditional Law declares and teaches that the Legislative
Branch 1leaders shall enact laws to address the immediate and
future needs. 1 N.N.C. §203 (D) (2009).

E. While the Navajo Nation Code, Title 2, states that Navajo Nation
President shall appoint District Court Judges “only from among
those named in the panel submitted” by the Law and Order
Committee, in order to address the Navajo Nation Judicial
Branch’s immediate and future needs, the Law and Order Committee
contends that submitting one applicant to the Navajo Nation
President 1s sufficient ©because the WNavajo Nation Council
requires the Law and Order Committee to use Iin&, here the
effective and efficient outcome is a fully staffed Judicial
Branch. 2 N.N.C. § 601 (B) (7) (b) (2012).

' F. Therefore, upon the Law and Order Committee’s recommendation, the
Navajo Nation President shall appoint a District Court Judge
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subject to Navajo Nation Council’s confirmation. 2 N.N.C. § 601
(B) (7) (2012) .

G. The Law and Order Committee reviewed the applicant’s
qualifications for judicial appointment. 2 N.N.C. § 601
(B) (7) (a) (2012) . See Exhibit A.

H. The Law and Order Committee determine that Chris P. Benally meets
the qualifications for appointment as a probationary Navajo
Nation District Court Judge and is the most qualified candidate.
2 N.N.C. § 601 (B)(7)(2012).

Section Two. Recommendation for Probationary Appointment

A. The Law and Order Committee recommends to the Navajo Nation
President that Chris P. Benally be considered for probationary
appointment as District Court Judge, subject to the Navajo Nation
Council’s confirmation. 2 N.N.C. § 601 (B) (7) (2012).

B. At any time during Mr. Benally’s probationary term, the Law and
Order Committee may recommend to the Navajo Nation President that
he be removed from office. 2 N.N.C. §601 (B)(9)(2012) and 7
N.N.C. § 355 (D) (2009).

Section Three. Directive

The Office of Legislative Services shall immediately submit to the
Navajo ©Nation President all documents provided by the applicant
recommended for appointment. Confidential information within
application documents shall remain protected except upon authorized

disclosure by the applicant. 2 N.N.C. § 81 et seqg. (2009):

CERTIFICATION

I -hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly considered by

"the Law and Order Committee of the Navajo Nation Council at a duly

called meeting at North Conference Room, Navajo Nation Council, Window
Rock, Navajo Nation (Arizona), at which a quorum was present and that
same was passed by a vote of 4 in favor and 0 opposed, this 16" day of

February, 2016.

Raymond Sm Vite-Chairperson
Law and Or Committee

Motion: Honorable Otto Tso

Second: Honorable Jonathan Perry
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EXHIBIT A

District Court Qualifications: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)

Navajo Nation Code Title 7

Applicant: Chris P. Be.nally

Navajo Nation member: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(1)

Yes: EXHIBIT A-2

Over 30 years of age: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(1)

Yes: EXHIBIT A-3

Criminal Convictions: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(2)
No Felonies
No misdemeanors within five years prior to application

None: EXHIBIT A-4

Misdemeanor in 1998: EXHIBIT A-1

*Applicant disclosed a misdemeanor on his application;
however, the Navajo Nation Office of Background
Investigations did not indicate the 1998 misdemeanor.

Education: Juris Doctor particular preference given:
7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(3)

Juris Doctor: EXHIBIT A-5

Experience: 4 years in law related area 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(4)

Three month externship with the Navajo Nation Judicial
Branch and summer externship with the Utah County
Public Defenders. EXHIBIT A-1

Navajo Language, Culture, and Tradition Knowledge:
7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(5)

Must speak both English and Navajo

Understanding of K'é

Understanding of traditional religious ceremonies
Understanding of traditional lifestyle

Speaks Navajo and possess an understanding of Navajo
culture and tradition. EXHIBIT A-6

ealth: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(6) EXHIBIT A-7
Driver’s License: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A}(7) Arizona: EXHIBIT A-8
No Substance Abuse or Addition: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(8). EXHIBIT A-9
Writing Test: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(9) EXHIBIT A-10
Ethics: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(10) EXHIBIT A-11
References: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(11) EXHIBIT A-12

Management Ability: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(12)

Professional Development Ribbon and completed the
Primary Leadership Development Course. EXHIBIT A-13

Navajo Nation Bar Association: 7 N.N.C. §354 (A)(13)

EXHIBIT A-14




EXHIBIT

-

tabbies®

JUDICIAL BRANC
OF THE NAVAJO NATION
APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT
PLEASE PRINT ALL INFORMATION (NO RED PENS) >

O ADR 3 ormatio ease O omp

JARE YOU'AN ENROLLED'MEMBER OF THE NAVAJO. TRIBE?. -

ZJF YES, INDICATE.CENSUS NUMBER. ... =} coo i NG, STATENATIONALITY.

DEH 2
Benaily
S OTHER NAMES USEDFAPPLICABLE: 2 = BTATES ZIP:CODE: &% 7
“DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMB SAYPE.S Do ol s BLASSE 5 S STATE T T T EXPIRATION DATE (MMDDIYYY Y-S
[ o B orerator D Arizona 02/22/2040
2 'ELEPHONE NUMBER' LEr MESSAGENUMBER = v e - SR L E-MA|LADDRESS ..

:]DO-YOU WISH TO CLAIM VETERANS' PREFERENCE?.

NO
DQ)M 214/215225 3 Employment Preference

If nat previously submitted pleage provide a copy af

Page High Schoot
Page, Arizona 86040

05/01/1993 Diploma

Utah Valley University Associate Degree - §
Aug-08 Bachelor's Degree Criminal Justice
Orem, Utah 84658
J- Reuben Clark Law School 08/12 April, 2015 Juris Doctorate Law
Provo, Utah 84601
ol
Arizona Welding institute 07/01 Oct-01 Welding Certificate Welding

Non-Commisioned Officer In the United States Army, Counseled and Mentored American Soldiers from across the United States.

Navajo Nation Attomey, swomn in on November 10, 2015

Externed with the Utah County Public Defenders Association, Provo Ulah.

Externed with the U.S. Department of Interior in Salt Lake City Utah.

Externed with the Navajo Nation Supreme Court

The Judicial Branch of the Navajo Nation gives preference to eligible and qualified applicants
in accordance with the Navajo Preference in Employment Act (NPEA) and
the Veterans' Preference of the Navajo Nation.

REVISED - 2/25/2011
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NAME OF REFERENCE OFFICIAL TITLE TELEPHONE NUMBER

1 7 Professor, JD 801-367-5022

2. - Professor, JD 801-239-3428

Department of Interior, BIA, Solicitor 801-524-5677 ext 223

SECTION IV: Applicant Disclosure (Please Fill Out Completely)

HAVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A FELONY? * r__] VES NWOYES, GIVE DATE AND REASON.

INCLUDES, FEDERAL AND STATE CONVICTIONS ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY

HAVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A MISDEMEANOR? * x YES
IF YES, GIVE DATE AND REASON - . L__l NO

=

DO YOU CURRENTLY HOLD ANY POLITICAL OR PUBLIC OFFICE(S), |.E. CHAPTER OFFICIAL, =
GRAZING COMMITTEE, FAIR BOARD, COUNCIL DELEGATE? IF YES, PLEASE LIST BELOW; D Yes X NO

* PLEASE NOTE: A conviction does not automatically disqualify you, however a NON-DISCLOSURE will resuit in your application for employment to be incomplete and
will not be consisdered for the position you are applying for.

ARE YOU RELATED TO ANYONE CURRENTLY EMPLOYED WITH THE JUDICIAL BRANCH OF THE NAVAJO NATION? D YES g NO

NAME: IRELATIONSHIP:

NAME: ) . |RELATIONSHIP:

SECTION V: Applicant Employment History - Provide Complete Information As Possible.

(Please Do Not Indicate "SEE RESUME") Start With Most Recent First.

Py O YER" DATES EMPLOYED -
EMPLOYER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS (MMIDDIYYYY) OFFICIAL JOB TITLE
FROM 10
International Brotherhood of Boilermakers Local Lodge #627 10/15/2015 10/31/2015 Union Boilermaker
TELEPHONE NUMBER REASON FOR LEAVING
2345 W, Thomas Rd, Phoenix, Az. 85015 (602)495-1282 Lack of Work
IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: Jacob Evenson
DESCRIBE DUTIES AND , i o . .
RESPONSIBILITIES Was employed as a stainless steef high pressure tube welder, conducted rigging in the annual overhaut of San Jaun Powerplant in Farmington,

New Mexico. Also ensured contractor abided by International Brotherhood o Boilermakers contractor rules, although { was not the Union Steward.

. DATES EMPLOYED

EMPLOYER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS (MM/ODNYYY) OFFICIAL JOB TITLE

FROM TO
Judicial Branch of the Navajo Nation 01/05/2015 04/06/2015 Semester Extern
TELEPHONE NUNBER REASON FOR LEAVING
928-871-7023 Extern complete
IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: Ms. Laverne Garnemez

[DESCRISE OUTIES AND
[RESPONSIBILITIES

Assisted in organizing files, daily activities. Gained experience in writing orders and became familiar with Navajo Nation Court Cases.

Observed meeting with the Supreme Court Justices and enrolled in a 1 week Navajo Judicial class.

Drove 70 miles, one way, for over two months using own finances and took out student lcans to finance this extern. Repaired own vehicle several times.

REVISED - 2/25/2011 PAGE20F 3




R L N DATES EMPLOYED i ra
EUPLOVER'S NAMEAND MAILING ADDRESS DOV OFFIGIAL JOB TITLE
i FROM TO :
Lauren: Engineers and Canstruciors 07/01/2014 l 08/01/2014 Combo Welder
j " T E NUMBER REASON FOR LEAVING |
901 South First Street £01-397-6007 Semaster Began for last yagcof law school.
IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: Robert Alba

Abilane, Texas 79602
ASAPCRLBLITES
Employed as a combo weider, welding high pressure piping for a new rsfinery addition. Reised money for achool and my family. Woke up at 3 am and retumed home by 7:30 pm.

ENPLOYER'S NAME AND RALING AQDRESS e OFFICIAL jOB TITLE
e | o —
— . Us. Dcmng of intarior 05/01/2014 08/10/2014 Extem
TEL EPHONE HUMBER REASON FOR LEAVING
128 South State Straet, Rin 8107 801-524-5677 Extern lnte
X IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: M. Grant Vatighin

Galhed exmdm Inkgd rasaarch.and wiola an advisory memorandum recommanding the course of action the Bureau of Interiors acions dealing with 8 local triba's intarest.
Applied Faderd and Stite cases and regulations on this project. Attended briefings from By of Land Management, National Park Services, and Buresu of Redlamation.

EWPLOYER'S NAME AND MALLING ADDRESS “‘m_ © oFciLJomTITLE
FRGM | 70
CH2MHiLL 070172013 Aug/20v2013 Combo Weider
- TELEPHONE NDWBER L L i —
8191 8. Jamaica St 720-286-2000 Semester bagan for Law School
IMMEDIATE BUPERVISOR:

Emgployed irLindon, Utah In new conetruction s a welder, rigger in a teem. Reised funds for law school and my family.

EWPLOVER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS et OFFICIAL JOB TITLE

i - FROM I TO i

UYtah County Public Defenders 05/01/2013 08/152013 Summer Extern
TELEPHONE NUMBER REABON FOR LEAVING

51 8. University Ave, #200 801-852-1070 Extarn Compilete

Provo, Utah 84804 INMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: © -Ms. Deborah Hill

NT WITH THE JUDIB]M. IRAHGH OF THE NAVAJIO HATION. QRANYOTHE! MATERIAL(S) USED IN THE APPLICATION PROCB! oR NI‘OIIATIONOFF!R!D DURING ANY
NTEVEWB. CAN BE JUSTIFIGATION FOR REFUSAL OF EMPLOYMENT, OR IF EMPLOYED, TERMINATION FROM EMPLOYMENT WITH THE JUDICIAL BRANCH OF THE NAVAJO NATION.
MY SIGNATURE BELOW AUTHORIZES THE JUDICIAL BRANCH OF THE NAVAJO NATION TO CONTACT ANY OF MY PRIOR EMPLOYERS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES AND THAT 1
UNDERSTAND THAT A CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK AND INVESTIGATION OF MY BAGKGROUND TO DETERMINE ANY AND ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION
FOR EMPLOYMENT, AND | RELEASE EMPLOYERS AND PERSONS NAMED IN MY APPLICATION FROM ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGES ON ACCOUNT OF HIS/HER FURNISHING OF

SAID INFORMATION.

SPECIFICALLY, YOU ARE HERESY AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY INVESTIGATION OF MY PERSONAL HISTORY, EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND, MILITARY RECORD, MOTCR VEHICLE
RECORDS UTILIING FEDERAL. STATE, OR LOCAL NAVAJO NATION LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OR BUREAU OF YOUR CHOICE. | AUTHORIZE THE RELEASE OF THI3
INFORMATION BY THE APP ITE AGENCIES TO THE INVESTIGATING SERVICE.

; -~
SIGNATURE 0 = DATE 12/23/2015

REVISED 2-25-2011
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JUDICIAL BRANCH P

OF THE NAVAJO NATION 4 k4
i~/ Received @
APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT APR202015 |-
Human Resources Ny

PLEASE PRINT ALl INFORMATION (NO RED PENS}

a ! 0 atio pase kI U O plet

ZMIDDLE INITIALZ:

7% QTHER NAMES USED IF APPLICABLE:

'DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER

O CbL B OPERATOR

- TELEPHONE NUMBER ™ ©

R

IBERE |

If Now previuus St

-, please attach copy of CIB
DOYOU WISH.TO'CLAIMVETERANS PREFERENCE?
y YES

O NO O YES
If not previously submitiéd, please provide a copy of DD Form 214/215/225 If Yes, please attach an Application for Veterans' Employment Preference
O Yes B No

ARE YOU CURRENTLY EMPLOYED WITH THE NAVAJO NATION, SUCH AS THE EXECUTIVE OR LEGISLATIVE BRANCH OR ITS ENTERPRISES?

WIS POSITION NUMBER

000099 ‘
U ADD 5 0 atio! 0 Please J A ate ana Co plete
E ENDEI
Sale - 3 : i !
HIGHSCHOOL , ' : =
Z%éi/q'” S Crrocd Aug [958 | mad 975 D(?(,mﬂ,

Aus usf hssécite Pgre _ _—
I Becketss fugm| (ke Tistiio

f ,&.rz/m:w Loy Lger Seatoor A, ARz Law 087 . L ow
Tove Las FFeo/ wiz | Juts
TECHNICAWQGA‘[!QNAL—?BUSINESS:SCHQOL : i
st Ay s Loshdete Tely 2201 1 0k po Wiy Gertofad W Mn 3
,k,/p— SZ o b :

M/&/rnﬂ—«éfrwu_ FFhlaser th %@,M,ﬁy/ ponpstled pud peptorst Solilsics 7{/2”‘1
geross 7‘%&.. & . f?éc/u

o l\}?ﬁ

[Z/e""‘/”"”g"/ A E/W e Lo pise [/ Lare Cl'f;
__‘laa/e,/ ot Uy @%{. /’:’://4 /.Lémér _ eovs " asy

The Judicial Branch of the Navajo Nation gives preference to eligible and qualified applicants
in accordance with the Navajo Preference in Employment Act (NPEA) and
the Veterans' Preference of the Navajo Nation.

REVISED - 2/25/2011
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OFFICIAL TITLE TELEPHONE NUMBER

T oabssson . TP F0/- 387~ 5a22
St T | S/~ 237- 3525
/ Br vt Loderir EIB, SLC £0)- 529 SETF ant 223

AVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A FELONY? * O YES o N0 IFYES, GIVE DATE AND REASON.
CLUDES, FEDERAL AND STATE CONVICTIONS ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY
AVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A MISDEMEANOR? * v o
YES, GIVE DATE AND REASON y.d NO
-~ + - 7 / Y.
T LA " —
- . S
D YOU CURRENTLY HOLD ANY POLITICAL OR PUBLIC OFFICE(S), LE. CHAPTER OFFIGIAL,
RAZING COMMITTEE, FAIR BOARD, COUNCIL DELEGATE? IF YES, PLEASE LIST BELOW: o Ys g o

* PLEASE NOTE: A conviction does not automatically disqualify you; however a-NON-DISCLOSURE will result in your application for employment to/ke
incomplete and will not be consisdered for the position you are applying for.

ARE YOU RELATED TO ANYONE CURRENTLY EMPLOYED WITH THE JUDICIAL BRANCH OF THE NAVAJO NATION? o vss X no
|AME: . RELATIONSHIP:
IAME: / ' S RELATIONSHIP:

'SECTION V: Applicant Employment History - Provide Complete Information As Possible.

(Please Do Not Indicate "SEE RESUME") Start With Most Recent First.

OFFICIAL JOB TITLE

(MM/DDIYYYY)
L / gr9eers £ Lormstomethrs TSPy | py 200 | oty ppiiter
7” 1) Sontd f ST 2 /’TE%?HON NUEER Sedor/ REASON FOR LEAVING
Zé/ [ e f x9S W‘ﬂ yA IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: ﬂé,/ [ ‘%

:gg:?;;ﬂfg" 7% “ /f s Mzé/ Zr 4/24/ Loy //7’/ ﬂ%fﬂ ﬂf//r'w /ﬁ’f Hesd  Trns Fiseeod g
s s, /,eﬂ; 2 Aods ush us L%, o ,2/)164 4 hed pgoes 4?_//07‘:/’71%/7'
j"/k’;? é!/ 24 /[1}(7{“’” /

" DATESEMPLOYED  §&§ P
(MIDDIYYYY) \E OFFICIAL JOB TITLE

NS Booi sty st 74 Lo torrr ﬁf/ 507 | 06/207 | Larr i

TELEPHONE NUMBER REASON FOR LEAyG

IS S SHA 5Vah am EI0F- ‘ N'-rzy FCIP_| petecn ferplere
éﬁ// ﬁz’z Jé Uiy fHRF IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: LT Votgorn/

EMPLOYER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS

//770’3’_?;,1’,'7

{SCRIBE DUTIES AND
{SPONSIBILITIES

4/ /’(faﬁ// R 4/1/ arre Vi 2 o reafer rendorins _on ‘
3 mf? okl Latiins vy, HRE e Mot mel Foolind |




i E EMPLOYER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS T LSI)ED OFFICIAL JOB TT
G 2 7742 Tt 2003 \pur 2e13 | Londe snfoer
q /4 / { f/?&'/&i; f/fe . / 3’,/?0 IE%H E N%B;; Sehes / o REASON FOR LEAVING
//;;35 4 ‘/,.‘:,/ (0 /o ncdl ColflZ IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: T,
R !s;é’i’fr'.i?"" ” /

bblo 4 Londonr LA 4 g o //4’/;// //”Mf' cord g5 g e cHoprii..

bobvd $Hortfoted meresS s patidl 2% sont ﬂé;n»s:— Stk 0 urden s’

;’7%/}./; 's /,o;yzf» -

EMPLOYER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS DA(LE:IS:)‘MTD a OFFICIAL JOB TITLE
[od LGy Sgh o Lbfermrtne npy 255 T 20y | XA ern
TELEPHONE NUMBER .
s/ 7 %//ernf’x; S #20s o/~ 452 /070 EX e 25522"2’55”'"6
/ﬂ,«‘:ﬂpi M@_# P07  |mmeDIATE suPerVISOR: ), ., 4 A

DESCRIBE DUTIES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

57 @/ cdrer” /@é L s b o 7 Aoty Se s, L L oo sy et m/f P /zy/% { oy

| Toe Lorr ﬁ//z/ //1/ seotf é/ﬂ//nq, fnc///'r /a// /4,—,,._(; g”’/ 7’/’(‘/ /7"/
["JM/)«-/ /15!@-54 4"/ pre o / /4n;( LTS -

~ DATES EMPLOYED

- EMPLOYR'S NAME NDG ADDRESS (MMIDDIVYYY) OFFICIAL JOB TITLE.
%//t’tz/ £ / /£ oX__LgnsFuetsn o~ 20)2. | 2012 | Sorleernpeer Tothe Jefoler
TELEPHONE NUMBER REASON FO NG
2D Seut fhor Bureor e R-GEEEYLG] | fey e TN
K rboprhos PHLO 7 035/ IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: Ia’,%/’ )%/7{///('

DI DUTIES AND
Rl BILITIES

Cmatoppe 28 4 Loikebakig., 124,4/ liced chivrme mif //zm/a Y/ 7 P Sers Taiin [ whophy

)

th_Feygity b M Pt o /"méz% f/ﬁﬁ/ﬂa ot //h/ A o pal /fn’ﬂf/f roste r/ presyse

_ﬂ, S

" DATES EMPLOYED _
(MMDDIYYYY)

OFFICIAL JOB TITLE

EMPLQOYER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS

= 7 TO — .
Lhectoce/ éfz%t Lpshboneare £ Lovstocton o dog) ey zoy | Bpilompben Fobe aeler
rd ’ TELEPHONE NUMBER REASON FOR LEAVING

J050_ L2/ atL Ay S5 325~ 5003 Lo

ﬁ’/‘wh(// New /r/#,w SF0/ IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: ﬁh/gm/ %”“f' /

DESCRIBE DUTIES AND / °
RESPONSIBILITIES

%L 44 ',z‘ W AMI/mA&r 27 //{ur fHAC Cl JAer V7, /4/‘»0‘4/ Jfﬂl*’/ ﬂ/ s é’»ﬁ(/hr S éaf/

2 a Mear Lrceutzy Sy s, ﬂm/qé//f’ S/ /Jﬂ/ pzstene ekt pa2et

SECTION VI: Judicial Branch Applicant Statement - Please Read Carefully and Sign

"THE INFORMATION THAT { HAVE PROVIDED ON THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE AND COMPLETE. ANY MISREPRESENTATION OR OMISSION OF ANY FACT IN MY
APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT WITH THE JUDICIAL BRANCH OF THE NAVAJO NATION, OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL(S) USED IN THE APPLICATION PROCESS, OR
INFORMATION OFFERED DURING ANY INTERVIEWS, CAN BE JUSTIFICATION FOR REFUSAL OF EMPLOYMENT, OR IF EMPLOYED, TERMINATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

WITH THE JUDICIAL BRANCH OF THE NAVAJO NATION. MY SIGNATURE BELOW AUTHORIZES THE JUDICIAL BRANCH OF THE NAVAJO NATION TO CONTACT ANY OF °

MY PRIOR EMPLOYERS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES AND THAT | UNDERSTAND THAT A CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK AND INVESTIGATION OF MY BACKGROUND
TO DETERMINE ANY AND ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT, AND | RELEASE EMPLOYERS AND PERSONS NAMED IN MY
APPLICATION FROM ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGES ON ACCOUNT OF HIS/HER FURNISHING OF SAID INFORMATION.

SQCALLY, YOU ARE HEREBY AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY INVESTIGATION OF MY PERSONAL HISTORY, EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND, MILITARY RECORD, MOTOR
v 'E RECORDS UTILIZING FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL NAVAJO NATION LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OR BUREAU OF YOUR CHOICE. | AUTHORIZE THE

RELEASE OF THIS INFORMATIQN BY THE APPROPRIATE AGENCIES TO THE INVESTIGATING SERVICE. .
DATE /;//// /5,/ 2005
/

" SIGNATURE

REVISED 2-25-2011 PAGE3 OF 3
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EXHIBIT

. Chris Benally
Ute Memo
TO: Grant Vaughn, BIA
ISSUE
1. Whether the US owes a trust responsibility« to the Ute Tribe for the delivery of its water
rights after completion of Central Utah Project?
FACTS:

The Uintah and Ouray Reservation were officially two separate reservations, the Uintah
Reservation was formed in 1861 and in 1882 the Ouray Reservation was formed. The reservation
holds three bands: the Uintah Ute Indians which Uintah Reservation was designated for, Ouray
Ute Reservation which was portioned for the Whiteriver and Uncompaghre whom were relocated
from Colorado. The current population of Uintah and Ouray Tribe is 3,157, from Utetribe.com.
While the population of the Wasatch Front, as of 2008, where this water is now being used, is

‘ 2,125,322. According to the 2008 census.

In 1887, by President Cleveland officially designated 4 million acres for the Uintah and
Ouray Reservation. In 1897, up to 1,004,285 acres of reservation land was opened under the
Homestead Act for homesteading. Any individual that desired to take 80 acres of reservation
land into private ownership, mostly fertile lands, were allotted those particular lands. The current
land base is 1.3 million acres.

In 1905, applications were submitted to the Utah State Engineer to irrigate allotted lands.
In 1906 congress authorized the Uintah Indian Irrigation Project, P.L. 59-258-34 Stat 325-76,
these lands were categorized in to groups six groups. Group 1 lands are the most fertile lands and
going dowil to Group 6, the most unproductive lands. Over a fifteen-year period, 78,950 acres of

allotted group 1 and 2 lands were improved by the Uintah Indian Irrigation Project. This

. intermingled non-Indian and Indian water projects.




In 1938, “A study of economic condition on the Uintah Irrigation Project, Utah” was
submitted to the US Department of Interior then to the 77* Congress for approval of the
recommendations. This legislation failed, but some of the recommendations were implemented.
The recommendations were Group 5-6 water rights to be transferred to group 1-3 lands. Attached
to this was a “Plan for Rehabilitation”, where the Bureau of Indian Affairs would eventually stop
providing service to non-Indians that had gained lands during the allotment act.

In 1956, The U.S. Bureau of Reclamation planned the Central Utah Project, which was
divided into four units, with the last unit being the Uintah and Ute Indian Unit.

In1965, a Deferral Agreement was made with the encouragement of the BIA in exchange
for the tribe postponing 15,242 acres of group 5 lands so their rights to 21,208 units of water
would be recognized without the Utes resorting to litigation (4). Water storage facilities were to
be built also by January 2005 according to this agreement, which was agreed to by the State of
Utah and BIA.

The Utes’ crux of the argument comes from section (5) of the Deferral Agreement, where
it states “immediate equitable adjustments had to made to perfect the rights of the Utes to their
immediate use of the water at that time.”

The first three phases of the Central Utah Project was authorized by Congress in 1956,
but the Uintah and Ute Indian Project was approved until 1968 and additional authorizations
occurred in 1972 and 1988.

The Bureau of Indian Affairs could not continue to operate the irrigation project due to
the costs it entailed. In February 1988, this led to the Uintah and Ouray Tribe’s Business

Committee to pass Resolution NO. 88-19, February 1988, where the Tribe expressed concern

that the 1965 Deferral Agreement was not satisfied. Subsequently the tribe passed a similar




resolution NO. 88-124 making 14 requests to BIA.

In 1992, Congress enacted Public Law 102-575, this act only addressed 4 of those
recommendations indirectly from the Ute Tribe’s resolution No. 88.124. This Public Law was
implemented into an ongoing water project. Recommendation from No. 88-124 from e/5 was,
“the Secretary of Interior retained trust responsibility to the Ute Tribes”, and m/13 “authorized
the project Engineer to change the water delivery and sublateral water headings”. Public Law
102-575 was not part of the Ute Water Settlement.

Under Public Law 102-575 Title V, Congress authorized the Ute Settlement by paying
the Northern Tribe: $49.0 million for agricultural development, $29.5 million for recreation, fish
and wildlife enhancement, and $125 million for economic developmenh But this was not the
intent of the Ute and Ouray Reservation tribes. Here, BIA states this is a remedy and satisfies the
1965 Deferral Agreement, by the wording “immediate equitable adjustment to perfect the rights
of the Utes.”

PLA 102-575 has seven sections, 501-507. 501(a) covers Congress’ Findings, which has
been the result of several lawsuits pertaining to unquanitified Ute water rights.

In 1997 the Uintah Indian Irrigation Projéct Operation and Maintenance Company,
(UHHPOMC), under resolution No. 97-005, was formed to maintain the Uintah Irrigation Project
on the Uintah Reservation.

In 2000 UITPOMC made agreement No. GTHO00C013 with the BIA to assume the
operation and maintenance of the Uintah Irrigation Project on the Uinfah Reservation.

In 1999, Uintah and Ouray Tribe refused to make any more agreements concerning their

water rights. Currently they are threatening to sue BIA for breach of fiduciary trust

responsibility, because the water storage facilities to provide water to Indians and non-Indians




alike have not been completed yet. According to the 1965 Deferral Agreement.

| Record #1 1938 A Study of Economic Conditions on Uintah Irrigation Project, Utah. Reported
to Secretary of Interior in 1940,

Positives - Proof of financial struggles for UIP project. Recommendations to transferring water
to more productive lands were later implemented.

Negatives- Not passed by 76" House of Representatives although the Senate passed it.

Record #2 1965 Deferral Agreement

14 Agreements between Ute, Utah Water District and U.S.. Utes conceded water from 15,242
acres to CUPCA in exchange for recognition of Group 1,2,3,4,5 water ri ghts with priority date
1861, without resorting to litigation.

Record #3 1988 February Resolution No. 88-19

Ute’s concerned on 1965 Deferral Agreement. This resolution is basis for Ute Water Settlement R
Title 5, of P1.102-575(1992).

Record #4 1988 JULY Resolution No. 88-124 from Utes.

Basis for Ute disagreement with CUPCA, Title 2 of PL 102-575 (1992). Secretary of Interior to
keep its Trust ‘Responsibility, which Ute state he is neglecting, to build water storage facilities as
mentioned in Deferral Agreement in 1965.

Record #S 1992 Public Law 102-575 (Congressional Action)

Took few suggestions from Resolution No. 88-124, divided and addressed two Ute issues.

1. Title 2 section 203 f., CUPCA, although it was not part of Title 5 it addresses Trust
Responsibility directly in respect to CUPCA.

2. Title 5 Ute Indian Rights Settlement.

Title V (a)(1) ...Tribe and State negotiated but did not quantify Tribe’s water.




Sec 501(a)}(2) acknowledged unresolved issues from 1965 Deferral A greement on “immediate
equitable adjustments had to made to perfect the rights of the Utes to their immediate use of the
water at that time.”
Sec 501Purpose (b)(3) Put the Ute in same economic condition as if 1965 Deferral Agreement
was constructed.
Sec 503 (a) Congress would ratify Revised Ute Indian Compact if Utah and Ute Tribe ratify the
Compact, which this has not occurred yet. Technically this compact has not been ratified yet.
Sec 503(e)(1) Federal water rights off reservation not approved.

(e)(2)- Does not constitute marketing of Ute water outside of Utah.

(e) (3) Shall not be considered that Congress authorized water marketing outside of Utah.

ANALYSIS:

The history of this case is complex in respects to this Nation’s treatment of Native
Americans. With the changing political parties from the various eras, has reflected on the
Nations treatment of its Native Americans. Here we are dealing with the Uintah, Quray,
Uncompadre.

Where there has been a Treaty with Native Americans, Congress has to clearly state it is
abrogating the treaty or agreement. In our case, the Ute treaty is still in force. When Congress
does not cleaﬂ}; sfate it abrogates a treaty, the treaty is still in force. Menominee Tribe v. United
States, 391 U.S. 404 (1968). In Menominee, the Court ruled Congress may only abrogate treaty
rights when it explicitly says it is doing so, here Congress has not explicitly abrogated the
agreement, thereforethe agreement is still in force.

The Court also ruled ambiguities are to be resolved in favor of Indians, known as Canons

of Construction. Worcester v. Georgia, 31 U.S. (6 Pet.) 515 (1832). Because the government
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wrote the treaties and not the Indians, the government is responsible for the different nuances of
the agreements.

The Canons of Construction Doctrine could be i gnored here as in Montana v. United
Stares, 450 U.S., 544 (1981), there the navi gable waters doctrine was applied. In our case, no

other doctrine is available and the issue the Utes are asserting is the violation of trust

- responsibility, not navigable waters. As mentioned in Public Law 102-575 (2002), the Deferral

Act has not been totally satisfied yet. Although under Title V, section 507 it reads “The Utes
shall waive all claims under the 1965 Deferral A greement”, but then Title V Section 501 (b) (3)
reads “The Utes should be placed in the same position as if the 1965 Deferral Agreement was
satisfied”, this makes PL 102-575 ambiguous. Which in turn triggers the Canons of Construction.
That is to interpret this agreement, as the Tribe would have understood it.

Since Public Law 102-575 (2002 amendment) is the most recent Congressional action,
although it states “The Revised...Compact... is hereby ratified and approved, subject to re-
ratification by the State and the Tribe”. If this paragraph is read in its full text, Title V Section
503 pl, has to be ratified by Congress once the Utes and State ratify it. Currently this Law has
not been ratified yet by the Utes and State of Utah and therefore Congress has not ratified it yet.
Here, Congress also bound itself by adding this wording.

Nevertheless, in Section 503 (e) in Public Law 102-575 (2002), in Rules of Construction,
it states that Federal water off reservation (1) Tribal “marketing” outside of Utah (2) an Any
holders outside of Utah (3) sale or lease of water shall not be deemed, in other words allowed. It
did not state other rules of Construction. |

FEDERAL TRUST RESPONSIBILITY —

The guardian/ward relationship was established in Cherokee Nation v. Georgia, 30 U.S.




1, (1831). The Court ruled the US is a settlor and trustee; tribes are beneficiary. Although the
Utes statgd in all contracts and agreements that the Secretary retain all its trust responsibilities, it
is only when a statute or regulation imposes trust responsibility upon the Secretary, a trust
responsibility is created. U.S. v. Mitchell, 463 U.S. 206 (1983). (Mitchell IT).

In Mitchell II the Court ruled Indian timber management statutes created during the
Allotment Act was an enforceable trust responsibility. This was created on behalf of Indians to
have sustainable timber harvests; Indians could sue for federal mismanagement. But when there
are no liability imposing statues then there is no trust liability. United States v. Mitchell, 445 U.S.
535 (1980). Mitchell I

The Supreme Court held the US had a trust responsibility in the upkeep of Fort Apache,
because evidence pointed to (1) executive management of the property and (2) breach of trust
duty. U.S. v White Mountain Apache Tribe 537 U.S. 465 (2003).

In the current situation the statute was enacted during the allotment era under the 1906
Congressional Public Law 59-258, the Uintah Indian Irrigation Project, so Mitchell Il standard is
satisfied. Over the course of hundred years, the government maintained the irrigation project but
then put it to the wayside, as new political parties with goals contrary to the laws were placed
into office. Congress has not yet passed a law abrogating statute PL 59-258. Unatil it does so, the
United States still owes a trust responsibility to the Utes.

In U.S. v. Navajo Nation 537 U.S. 488 (2003), there was a conflict in coal contract
pricing which the Navajo Nation disputed. The Court ruled the Secretary had no trust obligation
to get the best p;icing on coal to private parties, also this statute was not written during the

allotment era, even though the statute has not been abrogated yet. Unless this agreement

pertained to the sale of water, the issue here is the building water storage units, then this would
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apply, but it does not.

We could turn to other agreements that were written since 1906, but none of that point to
canceling Ute water to the state. The Utes always wrote into the agreements the “Secretary
retains its trust responsibility to the Ute”. Whenever it disagreed with the contract it stopped
negotiating and turned back to the Secretary to express their concerns.

RECOMMENDATION
The remedy I suggest is to build the storage units the Utes requested. The legislations

passed by Congress since 1906, has not explicitly abrogated the agreement made to the Utes.

This is not an official memorandum of the Office of the Solicitor, U.S. Department of the Interior but an exercise to
raise legal issues for consideration.

Grant L. Vaughn

Office of the Regional Solicitor

U.S. Department of Interior




‘ 2014 Navajo Election Directed Research

Chris Benally
Winter Semester 2015

(This paper was written while the 2014 election turmoil was still ensuing, before Navajo
Nation Candidate Russell Begaye was elected into office and will be sworn in on May 12, 2015
as the new Navajo Nation President).

The 20i4 Navajo Nation Election caused a controversy that gained national media
attention. The Navajo Nation’s statute, 11 N.N.C. § 8 (A) ( 4), reads thét a Navajo Nation President
"must fluently speak and understand Navajo." This caused one of the primary election winners,
Chris Deschene (Day-sh)-(chee-knee), to be disqualified after being deemed he was not fluent in
the Navajo language. As of April 13, 2015, the Court’s ruling in SC-CV-68-14"s is still being
challenged by the President and the Navajo Nation Council, even though the Navajo Nation

‘ Supreme Court states it settled this issue.

A summary of this case, Deschene and 16 other candidates applied for the Navajo Nation
Presidency. After the candidates’ debate and primary election occurred, where Deschene and
Shirley ended up winning the primary elections. Five months later before the General Election
occurred, Deschene was challenged. Navajo Nation Office of Hearing and Appeals, OHA,
initially rejected the complaint against Deschene but the Supreme Court reversed, stating
Deschene violated a sworn statement that he made.

The Court relied on Rule 27 of the Navajo Rules of Civil Appellate Procedure to quickly
try this case, aithough other cases have been on the books longer than the Deschene case. Under
Rule 27 the Court has discretion to give cases pertaining to child custody and elections priority.

To add to the confusion, the Navajo Nation Supreme Court does not have a building and had to

. hold across Névajo land at different court houses.




As the case proceeded, Deschene defended his stance successfully but in the end, refused
to take the Navajo language test. On several occasions stated he did not speak the language
proficiently. The Council attempted to pass legislation changing the language requirement
statute, which the President initially vetoed but then eventually signed. The Council considers
half of the enrolled members to not speak the Navajo language now, mostly young Navajos.

Currently, the Court still disqualifiés Deschene and the elections are scheduled for April
21, 2015, without Deschene. The Council and the President have openly disagreed with the
Court and the three branches have not come to an agreement yet but people are still voting. The
credibility of the Navajo Nation government and the Courts are being questioned. There have
been many protests, mainly from the disqualified candidate’s camp, under the name
“Disenfranchised Voters”. The opposing parties are reasoning that this issue revolves on the
language requirement, but the briefs filed are citing many other factors, that led up to this.

The Supreme Court states that it is applying the Dine fundamental law, which is to
protect the Navajo Nation and keep it’s culture and customs perpetual. Another argument the
Court cited wés that election requirements cannot be waived amidst an ongoing litigation.

The other two opposing branches reason demographics and values have and are still
changing, and the Court needs to make an exception. Most of the educated Navajos are now
gaining employment in Window Rock, Arizona, where the majority of the Nation’s workforce is
located. Once, a majority of Navajo people spoke the Navajo language now close to 50% of the
population speak the Navajo language at home.

| FACTS

The Navajo Department of Justice wrote this timeline on the 2014 Navajo Presidential

Election Dispute and places a perspective on this complex election case, written by Assistant




‘ Attorney General Paul Spruhan on January 26, 2015.

“Chris Deschene filed his candidate application with a statement that he fulfilled the
qualifications for President, in April 2014.” One requirement was being “fluent speak and
understanding Navajo”, with an additional statement “the candidate may be removed if it
includes a false statement, pursuant section 21 of the Navajo Election Code.”

On “April 25, 2014, the Navajo Election Administration certified Deschene’s candidacy
along with 16 other candidates”, deeming him qualified.

There was a ten day deadline for any of the candidates to be challenged, and on May 5,
2014, “the ten day deadline to challenge the certification under Section 24 of the Election Code
lapsed”, with no charges or complaints being filed.

On August 26, 2014: “Chris Deschene received 9,831 votes in primary election,
totaling19% of the Qote, placing second behind Joe Shirley, Jr., who received 11,052,7 or 21.36%
of the vote, to become eligible for the run-off general election.”

On “September 5, 2014, Candidate Dale Tsosie.. filed an election challenge under
Section 341 of the Election Code before Navajo Office of Hearings and Appeals, (OHA),
questioning Deschene’s fluency.” Dale Tsosie received. 1,292 votes, totaling 2.5% of the vote,

On “Septembef, 2014, Candidate Hank Whitethorne filed a separate election challenge on
same grounds. He received 398 votes, totaling .77% of the vote”

On “September 9, 2014, Office of Hearing Appeals dismisses the challenges based on
timeliness, ruling Tsosie and Whitethorne did not file within 10 days”, by May 5, 2014. Tsosie
and Whitethorne appealed in September 2014.”

On September 22, 2014 the Court consolidated Whitehorne’s and Tsosie’s complaints.

On “September 26, 2014, the Navajo Nation Supreme Court, (Court), held oral arguments




in Tuba City and reversed OHA. The Court remanded for OHA to hold a hearing on Deschene’s
fluency based on a standard adopted from Whitethorne’s brief, within 5 days.”

On September 29,2014, OHA met to discuss how to implement the fluency standard.

Deschene’s counsel agreed for Department of Dine Education administer a modified test given to

Navajo language teachers for purposes of testing Deschene’s fluency. The Test is scheduled to
be administered on October 2, 2014 with a hearing then to be held on October 3, 2014.”

On “October 2, 2014, Deschene arrived at the testing site, but\ declined to take the test.
Tsosie and Whitethorne filed for default judgment.”

On “October 3, 2014, OHA held the hearing. Deschene had a new counsel, whom stated
that prior counsel did not have authority to stipulate to the DODE test. Deschene moved to
dismiss based on lack of joinder of Navajo Election Administration and Navajo Board of
Election Supervisors. OHA denied the motion, concluding it was bound by the Court femand to
hold a hearing. Tsosie and Whitethore argued a motion for default for failure to take test.
Instead of granting the motion, OHA and the parties agree Deschene will be deposed by Tsosie
and Whitethorne’s attorneys on October 6, 2014.”

On “October 6, 2014, Whitethorne’s attorney deposed Deschene. It was done under
confidentiality and a gag order by OHA. OHA later stated Deschene refused to answer any
questions posed in Navajo.

On “October 8, 2014, the Court issued its fuﬂ_ opinion based off of the oral arguments
from September 26th. It held Section 341 of the Election Code, not section 24, applied to the
timing of the challenges, and both Tsosie and Whitethorne filed within 10 days of the primary

election. The Court also held the fluency requirement was valid and a reasonable regulation of

the candidate’s right to run for public office. It reiterated the importance of Navajo language




under Fundamental Law, and “clarified” the meaning of “fluently” in Section 8 based on
Whitethorne’s standard. The Court also stated Deschene was to “cooperate” with the OHA
proceeding.

On “October 9, 2014, OHA held a merits hearing on Deschene’s fluency. OHA and the
parties reviewed a video of the deposition in closed session. In open session, Whitethorne’s
attorney placed Deschene on the stand to answer questions in Navajo. Deschene answered
questions by challenging the standard and to the Navajo voters should decide his fluency.
Tsosie’s attorney moved for default for failure to comply with OHA and the Supreme Court’s
orders. Hearing Officer Richie Nez asked Deschene in English, whether he could explain how a
resolution became law in Navajo. Deschene declined to answer, OHA stated it has no choice but
to enter default, and granted a default judgment against Deschene.

The written default judgment stated Deschene was disqualified and OHA “expect[ed]”
the Navajo Election Administration to comply with Section 44 of the Election Code, which read
“upon disqualification of a candidate after the primary, the next-highest candidate will
“automatically” be placed on the general election ballot.;’ Hence, the 3™ highest votes, was
Russell Begay.

Deschene was supposed to appeal the decision in 10 days.

On “October 12, 2014, the Navajo Board of Election Supervisors met and declined to
postpone the general election bésed on OHA’s order. Instead, the Board stated they intended not
to follow the order, alleging it violated the rights of the voters and that the Board is an
“independent body” empowered under Section 321 of Election Code to interpret election law.

On “Qctober 14, 2014, Tsosie and Whitethome’s attorneys filed a writ of mandamus

seeking the Court order requiring the Board and the Navajo Election Administration to remove




Deschene from the ballot. They included a recording of the Board of Election Supervisors’
meeting of October 12, 2014.”

On “October 17, 2014, the Court issued an order for briefing on the writ petition and set
oral arguments for October 20, 2014. The order stated the proceeding was an enforcement action -
and that the qualification issue had been “fully adjudicated.”

On “October 20, 2014, the Court held the hearing on the writ petition in Tse Bonito, New
Mexico. In Tsosie’s and Whitethorne’s brief, they asked for an injunction against Deschene to
stop holding himself out as a candidate in addition to the writ against the Board and Election
Administration. Two amicus briefs were filed, one by Navajo Department of Justice (DOJ) and
by several Navajo voters. The Court denied DOJ’s amicus brief, stating the brief simply
disagreed with the policy behind the law. The Court ruled verbally, in a split decision, that it had
jurisdiction over the writ and that sovereign immunity did ﬁot prevent it from hearing it. The
Court toék the merits issue of Section 44 enforcement under advisement.”

Deschene appealed the OHA default judgment at 4:30 in the afternoon, the last day for
filing an appeal. He did not include a certified copy of OHA’s default judgment, a requirement
by the. Navajo Rules of Civil Appellate Procedure.

On October 21, 2014, Tsosie and Whitethorne filed a motion to dismiss Deschene’s
appeal for lack of a certified copy of the judgment. The Supreme Court dismissed Deschene’s
appeal for lack of a certified copy of OHA’s judgment.

October 23, 2014, the Board of Election Supervisors met but did not postpone or

otherwise stop the election.

The Supreme Court issued its written opinion on the writ petition, ruling it had

jurisdiction over the writ and that sovereign immunity did not apply, and ordered the Board and
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Election Administration remove Deschene’s name from the ballot. It also stated it was
“unavoidable”, the election must be postponed under Section 3 of the Election Code, which
allows the Board of Election Supervisors to postpone an election for up to 60 days for printing
new ballots. It did not order Deschene to stop holding himself out as a candidate.

The Council voted 11-10 Legislation No. CO-47-14, to amend the fluency requirements
in the Election Code by stating that fluency is to be determined by the votes of the Navajo
People.

On October 27, 2014, Tsosie and Whitethorne filed a motion for contempt and order to
show cause against Edison Wauneka, Director of the Navajo Election Administration, and the
members of the Board of Election Supervisors. They alleged Wauneka and the Board refused to
take Deschene’s name off the ballot and refused to reschedule the election.

On October 28, 2014, the Court issued an order to show cause against Edison Wauneka,

. Diréctor of the Navajo Election Administration and members of the Board of Election
Supervisors. It scheduled a hearing in Chinle on October 3 1,2014.

President Ben Shelly vetoed Legislation No. CO-47-14, which the Council passed to
amend the fluency requirements. He justified his veto by stating “this fluency issue should be

decided by the Navajo People through a referendum.”

On October 30, 2014, the Navajo Departrﬁent of Justice filed and amicus brief in the
contempt proceeding, arguing that the Court should hold an informal “talking things out” session
instead of a formal contempt hearing to resolve the dispute with the Board of Election
Supervisors.

On October 31, 2014, The Court held a show cause hearing in Chinle. The Court

accepted DOJ’s amicus brief, but declined to hold an informal “talking things out” session. At




the hearing, Edison Wauneka stated he will change the ballots to take Deschene’s name off the
ballot. The Court issued a verbal ruling, it held the Board of Election Supervisors were in
contempt, stripped them of their positions, and barred them from running for office.

At the same time, Presidential candidate Myron McLaughlin filed a grievance against
candidate Russell Begay with the Office of Hearings and Appeals, alleging Begay did not have
“unswerving loyalty” to the because as shareholder representative of the Navajo Oil and Gas
Company, he approved a federal lawsuit challenging a decision of the Navajo Supreme Court.”

On “N ovémber 3, 2014, the Office of Hearings and Appeals issued a Notice of
Sufficiency, indicating McLaughlin’s grievance against Begay can go forward to a hearing,
scheduling it for November 13, 2014.”

On “November 4, 2014, The Court issued an order finding the Board of Election
Supervisors in contempt based on the October 31 hearing. It assigned the Navajo Election
Administration the duty to hold a special presidential election within 60 days of November 4,
2014, with Deschene’s name taken off the ballot and the third-highest candidate, Russell Begay,
on the ballot. It also ordered the presidential votes cast at the November 4th election not to be
counted or disclosed.

On “November 5, 2014, The Court modified its November 4, 2014 order to a formal
opinion.”

On “November 13-14, 2014, OHA held a hearing on McLaughlin’s grievance against
Russell Begay. OHA did not make a decision, but requested proposed findings of fact and
conclusions of law.”

“On “November 24, 2014, OHA issued its findings of fact and conclusions of law,

upholding Russell Begaye’s candidacy, he was not disloyal to the Nation by approving the




. federal action challenging the Court’s decision concerning Navajo Nation Oil and Gas
Company.”

On “December 3, 2014, McLaughlin appealed OHA’s decision. He raised a new issue in

\
his notice of appeal: that OHA hearing officer Richie Nez was not qualified as a hearing officer ‘
in acéordance with the Navajo Nation Code, he was not barred in Arizona, New Mexico, or
Utah. He was the hearing officer that disqualified Deschene by default.”
On “December 4, 2014, without briefing, the Court held Hearing Officer Richie Nez’s
decision was protected by the de facto officer doctrine, he was appointed by the President and
had the authority of that appointment, whéther he was licensed by a state or not, The Court set a
briefing schedule on the merits of McLaughlin’s appeal, requiring OHA to file a response, and
invited the President to file a response.
On “December 12, 2014, DOJ filed a response on behalf of the Navajo Nation, and
argued, OHA was not an appropriate party to the appeal. It also argued the question of loyalty,
should be decided by the Navajo People through their vote.”
Hearing Officer Richie Nez filed a separate response for OHA, arguing that the Court
should rule on the validity of the state bar requirement for hearing officers for future cases. |
Based on the appeal, concerning McLaughlin’s challenge of Begay, the Navajo Election
Administration filed a motion with the Court to extend the special election up té 60 days from
when all election challenges are resolved.”
On “December 15, 2014, The Navajo Department of Justice issued a memorandum to
Speaker Pro Tem Lorenzo Bates and President Ben Shelly, concerning whether the President

continued as President. If no presidential election was held before January 13, 2015, the date the

Election Code mandates the new president should be sworn in. DOJ concluded the Election Code




did not clearly state what should happen, but under a reasonable interpretation of the Code the
President is held over until a new president is installed, after the election.”

On, “December 16, 2014, the Court issued a memorandum decision (informal opinion
that only applies to the case), ruling McLaughlin’s grievance was not timely filed under Section
341 of the Election Code, and OHA had no jurisdiction and Begay can run in the presidential
elections.”

“The Court also criticized DOJ for filing a response instead of filing a response for OHA.
It stated that it will not defer the meaning of qualifications in the Election Code to the “ever-
changing political will” of Navajo People due its responsibility to apply Navajo Fundamental
Law.”

On December 17, 2014, The Court granted the Election Administration’simotion to
extend the special presidential election, up to January 31, 2015. Then on December 22, 2014, the
Office of Legislative Counsel, OLC, issued a memorandum to the Council on the issue of
whether the President continued as President, if there is no election before January 13, 2015.
OLC concluded if a vacancy is created in the Office of the President, under the Election Code
and Title II of the Navajo Code, the Speaker is appointed the interim president until the election
is held.”

On “December 23, 2014 the Council again attempted to amend the fluency requirements
by passing Legislation No. CD-79-14 by a vote of 13-0, which left the fluency requirement in the
Election Code, but stated that the voters shall decide whether a presidential candidate is fluent”,
by their vote.

On “December 30, 2014, In a special session, the Council passed Legislation No, CD-80-

14 by vote of 11-1. This legislation set a new run-off election for President, and allows all




candidates who ran in the previous primary election, including Deschene, to run again. The

primary run-off election was scheduled for June 2, 2015, and the run-off general election for
August 4, 2015. The legislation included funding for the run-off elections. |

The Council also pardoned the Board of Election Supervisors, by passing Legislation No.
CD-81-14 by vote of 11-1. The Court earlier held the members in contempt on October 31, 2014.

The Council did not approve a supplemental funding request by the Navajo Election
Administration to fund the special general election.”

On, “December 31, 2014, the Council’s authority to pass legislation lapsed pursuant to 2
N.N.C. § 164(A). The Council did not pass that legislation to deal with the term of the
president.”

“President Shelly vetoed Legislation No. CD-79-14, the second attempt by the Council to
amend the presidential fluency requirement in the Election Code.”

On “January 7, 2015, the Navajo Department of Justice filed a petition for clarifying
opinion with The Court. It requested the Court to decide who will be President on January 13,
2015, as the conflicting opinions of DOJ and the Office of Legislative Counsel may result in two
individuals claiming to be President, exacerbating the chaos on January 13.”

On “January 8, 2015, the Court scheduled a hearing on the Petition for Saturday, january
10, 2015.”

On January 9, 2015, President Shelly and Speaker Pro Tem Lorenzo Bates, along with
three members of the incoming 23rd Council, agreed that Shelly remain President until the
Winter Session of the Council, scheduled for January 26-30, 2015. The agreement also stated,
the Council will not introduce legislation on the issue until the Winter Session.

On “January 10, 2015, based on the January 9 agreement, DOJ and the Office of



Legislative Counsel file a joint withdrawal of the petition for clarifying opinion. After
deliberation, the Court vacated the hearing based on the agreement.

President Shelly signed the two pieces of legislation passed by the Council on December
30, 2014 that created the special run-off election and pardoned the members of the Board of
Election Supervisors.”

On “January 12, 2015, Dale Tsosie and Hank Whitethorne filed a motion to hold eleven
Council Delegates in contempt for the passing of the legislation on the run-off election and the
pardons of the members of the Board of Election Supervisors. It also asked for Edison Wauneka,
Director of the Navajo Election Administration, be held in contempt for not holding the election
by January 31, 2015, as ordered by the Court. The motion asked for an order to show cause and
for the Court to declare both pieces of legislation invalid.”

Tsosie and Whitethorne requested the Court strip Edison Wauneka and the re-elected
Delegates of their positions, and for the Court require Controller Mark Grant and a representative
of the Navajo Office of Managemént and Budget to attend the show cause hearing to discuss the
availability of funds for the election. Also,v for the Court to enforce the J anuary 31, 2015 election
date.”

On “January 13, 2015, Chief Justice Herb Yazzie swore in President Ben Sheily to
continue as President. Separately, Delégates of the 23rd Council were sworn in. The new
Council held a special session, and selected Kee Allen Begay as Speaker Pro Tem by coin toss to
break a tie in votes between Begay and Lorenzo Bates. They took no action on the presidential
term issue.” Councilman Lorenzo Bates, was facing ethics charges, but Bates qualified himself.

On “January 15, 2015, the Court issued an order requesting briefing on the motion for

contempt filed by Tsosie and Whitethorne. The Court set a schedule for briefing through




February 6, 2015, and invited the Department of Justice and presidential candidates Joe Shirley,
Jr. and Russell Begay to file amicus briefs.” In the same order, the Court stayed the January 31,
2015 election date, pending resolution of the validity of the run-off election legislation.”

On “January 16, 2015, Delegate Dwight Witherspoon introduced two legislations, to deal
with the presidential term. One to authorize the Council to select a member of the Council to sit
as President until a new president is installed. The other was to authorize Ben Shelly to continue
as an interim president.”

On “January 22, 2015, the President and Council met to discuss continuation of the
President’s tenure. At a meeting of the Nabik’iyati Committee, Delegate Dwight Witherspoon
withdrew the two legislations.”

On” January 24, 2015, President Shelly and Council met again to discuss the presidential
term situation. The President and twelve delegates signed a new agreement to extend Shelly’s
Presidential term. The agreement was for the parties to facilitate and expedite the presidential
election.”

On February 20, 2015 the Court nullified the December 30, 2014 legislation passed by
the Council, to reset the whole presidential election. It ordered the Council to fund the election
between Joe Shirley Jr. and Russell Begay on March 31, 2015. It also held those Council
members that pardoned the removed Board of Election Supervisors, in contempt of Court. The
Court reinstated the charges and removal of the Election Supervisor Officers and set the election
for April 21; 2015.

On March 12, 2015 the Court sent a representative to the Council to éncourage the
Council to approve funding for the Court’s courthouse. While the President has armed guards,

the Chief Justice walks with no guards. The Court has to come in front of the Council to receive




funding from them. One of the Council members, Leonard Tsosie, attacked the representative
because she only spoke in English.

On March 13, 2015 the Council approved a referendum to amend the language
requirement for the Presidency. Thereafter on March 14, 2015 the Council passed an amendment
from the previous day to hold a referendum first and then the election thereafter, with strong
support of implementing immersion schools.

On March 18, 2015 the Court was asked to invalidate the amendment passed on March
13. On March 20, 2015 the Court ordered the election to occur on April 21, 2015 and to also hold
a referendum.,

April 2, 2015 both the Council’s Speaker and the President made statements that they do
not recognize the April 21, 2015 election, until the “disenfranchised” voters voices to allow a
referendum on the language fluency be addressed first. Which this, some believe, is an attempt to
reinstate the disqualified candidate back into office.

 ANALYSIS

According to the Navajo Nation Code, Fluency is defined as being able to speak, read,
and write the Navajo language. This statute made Native born, traditionally raised Navajos as not
fluent in their Native language. Although they might be Navajo, traditional shamans that know
all the ceremonies and folklore, they are legally not fluent in their language and unqualified to
run for Officerof the Navajo Nation President.

This disqualifies English only speakers, or Navajo only speakers, it also disqualifies
bilingual spéakers that can not write their language.

Whitethorne and Tsosie, relied on the second option that Deschene was an English only

speaker. The Court applied Whitehorne’s description and ordered a remand on September 26,




2014. There the Court stated:
“Tah dilkééhgo, t°ddk idahineezldago, t*ddchinahgo, ditts sdgo, haala Dine’

Binanit a i idliigo éi fahdo baa ydjilti (talk about), nabik'i yajilti ‘(analysis of
speech), bich'{ yajilti*(to talk about), hachi ydtti (to be talked to), biich aah yajilti’

.....

(protection speech), and Din¢ k’ehgo bik izhdii ‘tiik (comprehending the substance in
the Diné language).”

Translation for this would come out meaning, “With plainness, with straight paths, with
hope, our language is heard. Whomever is a Navajo Leader, they have to talk about solving
issues, talk through issues, to communicate with others, to be communicated with, to verbally
defend a subject and understand it in end through the Navajo language.”

Deschene, on the other hand, articulated he was an engineer, graduated from U.S. Naval
Academy (an elite institution), was a Marine Corp. Officer who served honorably, attained a
master’s in engineering and a juris doctorate degree, licensed to practice on the Navajo
Reservation and State of Arizona. He was supposed to be challenged by April 4, 2015 but no one
ever challenged him, pursuant to the 10 day deadline, even though his adversaries knew of this
requirement. He was challenged until five months later, long past the deadline.

A Talking Things Out session was requested, similar to mediation, but Deschene whom
eventually stipulated to get a language fluency test, refused to take the test. Deschene since then
refused to talk this out. In addition the Court has been called for a talking things session out by -
the Council, but the Court has refuse because they are outnumbered by 1 to 12. As of now the
election is ongoing up until the 21* of April, and only time will telt what will occur.

In consequence the Navajo Department Of Justice and the Navajo Nation Council wrote
briefs in support of Deschene, but the Court continually cited Navajo Fundamental law in

defense of disqualifying Deschene, and any othér candidate that is not fluent in the Navajo

1anguage.-




NAVAJO FUNDAMENTAL LAW

The Navajo language was ori ginally unwritten, and until World War II, when the United
States Marine Corps. used the N: avajo language against the Japanese to drop the atomic bomb, it
gained recognitioﬁ and was put into writing.

The oral customs of the Navajos, or Dine’ (Den-neh) in the Navajo language, only shared
oral history in the winter months when insects were not out. Those oral “stories”, ceremonial
education, were only shared during certain ceremonies. This practice is still the same today.
Many of the books published on N avajo ceremonies are written, intentionally, incomplete, or
medicine men have refused to have it written down. Only the Native speakers have some
knowledge of those stories. But, not one person has complete knowledge of the ceremonies now.
Since many medicine men have passed away, refusing to publish or share their ceremonial
knowledge, for fear of being practiced or applied with the wrong intentions.

Since the Spanish conquest of the Navajo land, the Navajos resisted Spanish rule for over
250 years. The Treaty of 1868 was signed after the U.S. Army defeated the Navajos on th‘eir
homeland and thereafter the U.S. annexed Navajo land. The Navajos have since been under
American rule for 147 years.

Many of the customs have been changed such as the removal of the ceremonial hair
tying, “Navajo hair bun”, and the once independent, nomadic lifestyles have been changed to
those to depending on the U.S. government for the basic survival. Although, many Navajos are
now educated and have moved off of the reservation, there are still many Dine’ that speak the
language and keep the oral traditions intact, which is not shared with whomever asks for it.

I, as an extern from J. Reuben Clark Law School, was given a book with writing on the




basis of Navajo legal customs and was informed not to pass out or distribute my copy of that
knowledge to just anybody. With that in mind, I will cover what I believe is the main oral
foundation in Dine’ fundamental law.

ORAL CUSTOMS

There were two twins that were born onto this earth. They grew to be men in four days.
Eventually as our Savior Jesus Christ has done, they overcame death, hunger, poverty, lice, old
age, etc.... (In that legend the ailments of this world were spirit people). Some were eventually
allowed to exist in this world after they gave legitimate reasons to live. Such as, man can not just
lay around if material things did not wear out. (6).

The Warrior Twins mother was the mother to all Dine’ ceremonies. Where one day she
decided to move onto an island somewhere on a western ocean. This island was paradise, where
the island was made of white sea shells. As the Twins missed their mother, they decided to look
for her in the ocean. When ;hey found her, they observed that she was walking clockwise in her
hoga’n and keptjumping over the doorway, every time she came to it. (7).

In their curiosity, they discovered she was making laws of this land. The seasons, day and
night, plant growth and even human growth. Every time she stood at the western side of the
house, she would become a baby again. She would crawl clockwise as she reached % of the way
she attained her puberty, ¥ way by the entrance she reached adult hood, 3% of the way she
reached old age. When she returned to the western side of the hoga’n, she instantly changed from
an old lady back to a young crawling baby again. Hence the name Changing Woman, Asdza4n
Naglééli (Ah-s-jzz-uh) (Nah [nada]- glay- cl-¢).

The Court’s ruling made on December 8, 2014 cited fundamental law. The Holy People

- that is referred to in the Court’s ruling are about the characters that are oral legends passed from




generation to generation in the winter time, the concepts and lessons that were recited in the
. Hoga’ns used as a teaching mechanism. Unwritten fundamental law is applied, into a customary
daily living and ceremonies. But, it is written by statute that Navajo fluency is only attained by
one’s writing and speaking in Navajo. This is a contradiction and appears to be the heart of the
political turmoil. Currently, the ruling below is what the Court is standing by and attempting to
uphold:

“In this society, this Court has an obligation to interpret Navajo law and
enforce Navajo law. When we carry out that responsibility, that responsibility is not
limited to an interpretation of statutory laws -those laws made by human beings to
regulate other human beings in society. We consider ancient laws also. The ancient
laws of the Holy People take precedence because these are sacred laws that we were
placed here with. As an illustration, we recount the time in our history when the
Navajo people, after being placed on this Earth, lived with the Holy People so they
would be educated about our ancient laws -the right and wrongs. But there came a time
when the Holy People were about to leave. If you can picture that occasion, the people
were in a hoga’n and the Holy People were one-by-one filing out. One of them,
Haashch 'eelti’i” (Talking God), poked his head back through the doorway and said,
"My children, there is one thing that I must tell you: do not forget the value system that

. we have given you." In the Navajo language that system is expressed as
Naakits'aadahgo . Core to that system is the language. The value system -the law of
the Navajo people -is embedded in the language. When Haashch 'eelti’i” said that to the
people, that in itself became the establishment of a law -bee haz ‘aanii. Now you take
that law and apply it. It is how our people survived as a society since time immemorial.

Over 140 years ago, upon the return of the Navajo people back to Navajo
country from Hweelds, the people were gathered somewhere around Fort Wingate, and
the leader at the time, Manuelito (Hastiin Ch ilhaajim), spoke to them. He said, "My
people, my relatives, my children, you are about to go back to the homeland. As you
do, I must tell you that you must not forget our ways. You must not forget the language
(nihizaad nihil ch 'aawiile’ liigo), the prayers, and the songs. This is what got us
through this experience that we are coming from." When you think about that and the
law that was established by the Holy People, our human leaders of the past obeyed
that. And they carried out the responsibility of instructing the young ones that they
must also carry this on. So that is ancient law that we consider in the interpretation of
Navajo statutory laws.” (Tsosie and Whitethorne v. Deschene, SC-CV- 57-13 & SC-
CV-58-14 atp. 11. N.N. S.Ct. Dec. 8, 2014.)

CONCLUSION

This case would come down to a similar outcome, as the Martinez Pueblo case. Santa

. Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49 (1978). In that case, Pueblo women that married non-




enrolled tribal members were disenrolled with their children from the tribal rolls and the men,
even those who intermarried remained enrolled, with their families, Most of the women, that
were removed, were happy and satisfied with the rulings because tribal sovereignty remained
credible, even though they were removed from the rolls for intermarrying outside the tribe. There
is also a similar satisfaction for keeping the bar up high for the Navajo President to speak and
understand the language.

In conclusion, the Navajo language gives the Navajo ianguage their identity. Examples
are: an American President’s requirement in speaking English, and Spanish President
requirement for speaking in Spanish, a Chinese Leader requirement for speaking in Chinese, a
Persian Leader requirement for speaking in Persian, a Russian Leader requirement for speaking
in Russian.

As of now the election is scheduled for April 21, 2015 and the Navajo Election Office is
abiding by the Court’s order. Although the Navajo Nation President and the Council’s Speaker
both criticized the Court, for going on with the election before a referendum is passed to change

the language requirement, the polls are open for early voting right now. (Consequently candidate

Russell Begaye became the victor.)
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! MEMORANDUM

! TO: Carolyn West, Attorney
Office of Legislative Counsel

FROM: S 7
Rodgerick T. Begayxddting Deputy Attorney General
Navajo Nation Department of Justice ,

DATE: January 13,2016

SUBJECT: Exhibits for Legislation No. 16-154-1

! . This memorandum will replace the memorandum dated January 12, 2016. The

above mentioned legislation contains several exhibits pertaining to a candidate for a Judge
? position. Generally, exhibits to legislations are posted online for public view. However,
[ pursuant to 2 N.N.C. §164(A)(6), “[alny matters or exhibits determined by the Navajo Nation
i’ Department of Justice to be confidential shall be properly marked ‘confidential’ and shall not be
: placed on the website or otherwise released.” In one sense, the public should have the
j opportunity to review documents submitted by candidates for a public position such as a Judge
: position. However, in another sense, there is an expectation of privacy to certain information.

; One of the tools used to determine confidentiality is the Navajo Nation Privacy
§ Act, 2 NN.C. §§ 81 et seq. While section 164(A)(6) does not require an analysis and
| application of the Privacy Act, the Privacy Act will be used for guidance on certain information
contained in the exhibits. '

E Section 85 of the Privacy Act describes protected records which should not be
‘ disclosed to the public except in very limited circumstances. For exhibits to legislations such as
this, the relevant portions of Section 85 indicate that the following are protected records:

1) records concerning an individual’s eligibility for social
services and welfare benefits;

: ‘ 2) medical records
i 3) records of a current/former employee or applicant for a
! governmental entity that would disclose the person’s “home
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| address, home telephone number; social security number,
insurance coverage, marital status, or payroll deductions.”

| 4) records of a current/former employee or applicant for a

! governmental entity such as “performance evaluations and

| personal status information such as race, religion, or

i disabilities,...”

5) certain records describing a person’s finances; and

' 6) “Other records containing data on individuals [wherein] the

z , disclosure [will] constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of

' privacy.”

The Privacy Act makes certain implications such that certain records are
entirely protected or that only certain information are protected. In the latter, the
implication is that certain documents can be released so long as the protected information
is redacted. The job application falls within this category. Upon review of the exhibits,
there are two job applications, one of which is partially redacted. If the job applications
‘ will be disclosed to the public, the following information on both job applications must
; be redacted prior to release:

’ 1) Social Security Number;
§ 2) Address;
. ‘ 3) ' Driver License number
: 4) Telephone Numbers;
5) Email Addresses; "
6) Census Number;
7) All person’s identified as the applicant’s references;
8) All information in Section IV.

‘ The memorandum dated May 26, 2015 from the Judicial Branch to the
! Navajo Nation Division of Public Safety is also not entirely confidential but contains
confidential information that must be redacted. If this document will be disclosed, DOJ
‘ advises to redact the following information:

1) address;
: 2) date of birth;
3) social security number;
7 4) census number;
| 5) driver’s license number.

! Itis fair to assume that any information that is determined to be confidential by this memorandum, but is not specificatly listed
in the Privacy Act, has been deemed by DOJ as a “clearly unwarranted invasion of privacy” under section 85(A)(20).
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DOJ determines the following documents, in their entirety, to be
confidential because the applicant has a reasonable expectation of privacy to them.
Thus, the following documents should not be posted online:

1) Certificate of Indian Blood,;

2) Birth Certificate;

3) Background Check Determination Notice dated June 25, 2015;
4) School Transcripts;

5) Bar Exam Results;

6) Psychiatric Evaluation;

7) Driver’s License;

8) Affidavit of not having any physical addictions;

9) Ethics Clearance;

9) Military Discharge documents;

10) Letters of Recommendations.

The following documents are not confidential and do not contain any
protected information that requires redacting:

1) Judicial Branch Peacemaking Program certificate;
2) Writing Sample. ,
@
xc: Ethel Branch, Attorney General
Office of the Attorney General




